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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABCR, CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. WEST 86-1-M
PETI TI ONER A. C. No. 05-03143-05511
V.

Par achute Creek M ne
UNI ON O L COVPANY OF CALI FORNI A,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Margaret A. Mller, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
Petitioner;
Ant hony D. Weber, Esqg., Union O Conpany of California
Los Angeles, California, for Respondent.

Bef or e: Judge Lasher

This proceeding was initiated by the filing of a petition
for assessnment of a civil penalty ("Proposal for Penalty") by the
Secretary of Labor (herein the Secretary) on Novenber 15, 1985,
pursuant to Section 110 of the Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Act
of 1977, 30 U.S.C. Section 820 (1977) (herein the Act). A hearing
on the nerits was held in Denver, Colorado, on June 25, 1986, at
whi ch both parties were represented by counsel. Subsequent to the
hearing the presiding adm nistrative | aw judge, John A. Carlson
passed away and by Order of Assignnment dated October 17, 1986,
this matter cane on the docket of the undersigned for decision

The Secretary charges Respondent with one violation, i.e.
violating 30 C F. R [J57.5001/5005 as described in Gtation No.
2355268 i ssued by MSHA Inspector Mchael T. Dennehy on May 115,
1985, as follows:

"On May 15, 1985, a Union G| Conpany enpl oyee wel di ng
underground at the secondary crusher area was over
exposed to wel ding funmes (Vanadi unm) while applying hard
surfacing wel ding rods (nickel-chrone manganese and
Vanadi um car bide) to the crusher. The wel der was
exposed to .0678 ng/ M8 of Vandi um funme whereas Vanadi um
fume has a ceiling limt of .05 ng/MB and shoul d not be
exceeded. Personal respiratory protection was not being
worn by the enpl oyee while he was
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wel ding nor was the ventilation fan operating the entire shift.
Anal ytical results were received June 7, 1985. This citation is
i ssued June 27, 1985. The sanples were taken May 15, 1985."

The subject 104(a) Citation further charges that the
violation was "significant and substantial” (herein "S & S")
(FOOTNOTE 1.)

Insofar as relevant, the air quality standard all egedly
infracted, 30 C.F.R [57.5001, which sets forth exposure limts
for airborne contam nants, provides:

"Except as permtted by 057.5005 - (a) Except as

provi ded in paragraph (b), the exposure to airborne
cont am nants shall not exceed, on the basis of a tine
wei ght ed average, the threshold Iimt val ues adopted by
the Anerican Conference of Governnental |ndustrial

Hygi enists, as set forth and explained in the 1973
edition of the Conference's publication, entitled
"TLV' s Threshold Linmt Values for Chemical Substances
in WorkroomAir Adopted by ACA H for 1973," pages 1

t hrough 54, which are hereby incorporated by reference
and nade a part hereof. This publication may be

obtai ned fromthe Anerican Conference of Covernnenta

I ndustrial Hygienists by witing to the
Secretary-Treasurer, P.O Box 1937, Cincinnati, Chio
45201, or may be examined in any Metal and Nonnet al

M ne Safety and Health District or Subdistrict Ofice
of the Mne Safety and Heal th Adm ni stration

Excursi ons above the listed thresholds shall not be of
a greater magnitude than is characterized as
perm ssi bl e by the Conference.

* * * * * * * * * *

(c) Enpl oyees shall be withdrawn from areas where there
is present an airborne contam nant given a "C'
designation by the Conference and the concentration
exceeds the threshold limt value listed for that
contam nant." (FOOTNOTE 2)
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The pertinent TLVs referred to in 30 C F.R [57.5001 provide as
fol | ows:

" Subst ance ppm a) ng/ M3 b)
Vanadi um (V205), as V
Dust ............... AAA 0.5 C
Fume ............... AAA 0.05

kkkkhkkkhkk*k

a) Parts of vapor or gas per mllion parts of contam nated air
by volune at 25C and 760 nm Hg. pressure

b) Approximate mlligrans of substance per cubic neter of
air." (FOOTNOTE 3)

30 C.F.R [57.5005, entitled "Control of exposure to
ai rborne contam nants”, also cited by the issuing |Inspector
provi des:

Control of enployee exposure to harnful airborne
contam nants shall be, insofar as feasible, by
preventi on of contam nation, renoval by exhaust
ventilation, or by dilution with uncontam nated air.
However, where accepted engi neering control neasures
have not been devel oped or when necessary by the nature
of work involved (for exanple, while establishing
controls or occasional entry into hazardous atnospheres
to perform mai nt enance or investigation), enployees may
wor k for reasonable periods of time in concentrations
of airborne contam nants exceedi ng permi ssible |evels
if they are protected by appropriate respiratory
protective equi prent. Whenever respiratory protective
equi prent i s used a program for selection, maintenance,
training, fitting, supervision, cleaning, and use shal
meet the follow ng mninmumrequirenents:

(a) Mne Safety and Health Adm nistration approved
respirators which are applicable and suitable for the
pur pose intended shall be furnished, and enpl oyees
shal |l use the protective equi pnent in accordance wth
training and instruction.

(b) A respirator program consistent with the

requi renents of ANSI Z88.2-1969, published by the
Anerican National Standards Institute and entitled
"American National Standards Practices for Respiratory
Protecti on ANSI Z788.2-1969," approved August 11, 1969,
whi ch is hereby incorporated by reference and nade a
part hereof. This publication my be obtained fromthe
Anerican National Standards Institute, Inc., 1430

Br oadway, New York, N Y., 10018, or nmay be exam ned in
any Metal and Nonnetal M ne Safety and Health District
or Subdistrict Ofice of the Mne Safety and Health
Admi ni stration.
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(c) When respiratory protection is used in atnospheres
i mediately harnful to life, the presence of at |east one other
person wi th backup equi prent and rescue capability shall be
required in the event of failure of the respiratory equi pnent.

In general aid of the record, the dictionary definitions of
these two terns are set forth here. Thus, vanadi um and vanadi um
pent oxi de are described in "A Dictionary of Mning, Mneral and
Rel ated Terms" (conplied and edited by Paul W Thrush and the
Staff of the Bureau of Mnes, U S. Departnent of the Interior
1968), as foll ows:

Vanadi um A gray or white, malleable, ductile,

pol yval ent metallic elenent in group V of the periodic
system It is resistant to air, sea water, alkalies,
and reduci ng aci ds except hydrofluoric acid. It occurs
wi dely but mainly in small quantities in conbination in
m nerals (such as vanadinite, patronite, carnotite, and
roscoelite), in the ashes of many plants, in coals, in
petrol euns, and in asphalts. Usually obtained in the
form of ferrovanadi umor other alloys, or in al nost
pure netallic formcontaining small anmounts of oxygen
carbon, or nitrogen by the reduction of ores, slags, or
vanadi um pent oxi de (V2Cb). Used chiefly in vanadi um
steel. Synbol, V; atom c nunber, 23; and atom c weight,
50.942. Webster 3d; Handbook of Chem stry and Physics,
45th ed., 1964, pp. B-2, B-143.

Vanadi um pent oxi de. Yellow to red; orthorhomnbic; V2Cb;
nol ecul ar wei ght, 181.88; specific gravity, 3.357 (at
18 O); toxic; nelting point, 690 C deconposes at

1,750 C before reaching a boiling point; slightly
soluble in water; soluble in acids and in alkalies; and
i nsoluble in absolute al cohol. Used in ceranics and as
a catal yst. Handbook of Chem stry and Physics, 45th
ed., 1964, pp. B-144, B-236.

As noted in the foregoing,, and as reflected in the TLVs, V
is the synmbol for vanadiumand V206 is the synbol for vanadi um
pent oxi de.

Prelim nary Findings
and Concl usi ons

VWil e the formof Vanadi um at which the subject safety and
health standard is directed is Vanadi um Pent oxi de (V2Cb). (T.
100-102, 140, 141), the violation created by 30 C.F.R [057.5001
is for exceeding the TLVs for Vanadi um fune or Vanadi um dust.
Vanadi um pent oxi de i s one of several forms of Vanadiumand is a
separate, nore toxic formthereof (T. 140, 141, 168, 208). The
techni que for the determ nation of Vanadiumrequires (1)
determining the particular TLV (threshold limt val ue) of
Vanadi um (fume or dust) and then (2) determ ning approximate
mlligrams of Vanadiumitself per cubic nmeter of air and applying
to such determination a nultiplication factor (error factor) to
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account for any vagaries inherent in the process. (T. 36-38, 97,
140, 159, 168). The Vanadi um fune TLV of .05 ng/Mis equival ent
to a Vanadi um Pent oxi de reading of 2 1/2 tinmes such level (T.
168).

The subject Citation was issued by MSHA I nspector M chael T.
Dennehy on May 15, 1985, the second day of a two-day inspection
of Respondent's Parachute Creek M ne, an underground oil shale
m ne | ocated near Parachute, Colorado. On the first day of the
i nspection, My 14, Inspector Dennehy ascertai ned that hard
surface wel di ng usi ng vanadi um rods was bei ng conducted on the
secondary crusher and decided to sanple mners engaged in this
work on the follow ng day. In furtherance thereof he called an
MSHA health technician in Grand Junction, Col orado and requested
that welding funme filters be prepared for his survey to be
conducted the followi ng day and precalibrated his P-2500 punps in
preparation therefor. (T. 11-15; Ex. P-1).

After calibrating the punps on May 14, 1985, and chargi ng
t hem overni ght, M. Dennehy returned to the mne site the next
morning with five punps and air filters (T. 15). M. Dennehy
proceeded to the crusher area of the m ne where four enployees
were welding (T. 16) and he placed the punps on them by fastening
the punp to their belt, putting the punp hose behind their back
and placing the top of the hose in their breathing zone (T. 18).
Each punp contained a filter that was placed in the punp by M.
Dennehy after removing the preseal nunmber (T. 19, 22). M.
Dennehy recorded the preseal nunber on his health field notes
(Ex. P-2) (T. 22, 23). M. Dennehy also recorded on Exhibit P-2
the tine he turned on the punps and he noted the nanmes of the
enpl oyees (T. 21). After turning on the punps, M. Dennehy |eft
the area to conduct further inspection (T. 24).

At issue in this matter is sanple nunber MD-1 as indicated
on Ex. P-2. M. Dennehy left the punp on the enpl oyee wearing
sanple MD-1 for the entire shift period. He interrupted the fune
sanmpling at one point during the day to take a 30 m nute short
termsanmple (T. 25). He indicated the 30 m nute sanple by naking
entries on his notes (Ex. P-2, P-1) (T. 27). At the end of the
shift M. Dennehy renoved the punps fromthe enpl oyees, renoved
the filter fromeach of the punps, and sealed the cassette. He
put the cassette back into the hol ding tubes and returned to his
office in Gand Junction. He then did a post calibration of the
punps and entered this on his presanpling calibration sheet (Ex.
P-1).

At the Grand Junction field office M. Dennehy returned the
sanmpling cassettes and filters to the health technician (T. 28,
29). M. Dennehy returned the entire seal ed cassette to the
techni cian. The technician then sent the cassette to Denver for
analysis (T. 85, 86). Along with the cassettes was sent a request
for analysis, specifically, the analysis of the 16 el ements of
wel ding fume (T. 86).
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In response to his request, M. Dennehy received fromthe Denver
Safety and Health Technol ogi cal Center, MSHA, in Denver, an
El emental Analysis Report dated 6/5/85 (Ex. P-3) (T. 29, 86). The
report fromthe technol ogy center indicated to M. Dennehy that
sanple MD-1 contained 47.4 m crograns of vanadium To deternine
the exposure to the elenments listed on Exhibit P-3, M. Dennehy
conduct ed cal cul ati ons on a fune worksheet (T. 30-32) and
determ ned that the concentration of vanadi umwas .0678
mlligrams per cubic nmeter (T. 33). M. Dennehy next |ooked in
the 1973 TLV bookl et for the TLV for vanadium He found the TLV
to be .05 mlligranms per cubic nmeter (T. 34). M. Dennehy
i ndi cated that although vanadiumwas listed twice in the TLV book
he used the TLV for vanadi um fune because the enpl oyees invol ved
wer e conducting wel ding which creates funmes fromthe vanadi um
welding rod (T. 34, 49).

The .05 ng/ MB TLV for vanadiumfunmes is a ceiling limt. As
M. Dennehy indicated, a ceiling limt neans that at no tine
should this Iimt be exceeded (T. 35). Once he ascertained the
TLV for vanadium M. Dennehy discussed his calculations with
Ri chard L. Duran, an MSHA industrial hygienist in Denver to be
certain of his calculations. M. Duran concurred that the
cal cul ati ons were correct.

M. Dennehy al so discussed with M. Duran an error factor in
t he exposure. He then calculated an error factor of 1.16; even
with this error factor the exposure was above the .05 mlligrans
indicated in the TLV booklet (T. 38).

Vanadiumis an elenment found in hard netal, in this case, in
the rods being used to weld. Aplication of heat vaporizes the
material and if it is mxed with air or it oxidizes, vanadi um
pent oxi de results (T. 100). The sanple taken by the Inspector
i ndi cated the presence of vanadium as above noted, the TLV is
stated in ternms of vanadium (fume or dust) not vandi um pentoxi de
(T. 100, 102, 168). A welding operation using a rod containing V
wi |l produce V206 (T. 34, 101). The TLV bookl et indicates that
the standard for vanadiumfunme is .05 mlligranms per cubic neter.
Here, where the value is .0678 nmilligrans per cubic neter of
vanadi um there would have been two and one-half tinmes as nuch
vanadi um pent oxi de as vanadi um because vanadi um pent oxi de is
heavi er than vanadi um The value for V205, vanadi um pent oxi de,
woul d be two and one-half times as great as the value for
vanadi um (T. 102). An overexposure then to .0678 mlligranms per
cubic nmeter of vanadi umwoul d indicate an exposure to V2G5 at two
and a half times that amount (T. 102, 168). The TLV bookl et
indicates a ceiling level of .05 for vanadi umfunme. An exposure
of .0678, as in this case, is an incursion of 35 to 36 percent
over the TLV (T. 103, 159) and is in and of itself a violation of
t he subject safety standard (T. 220, 223, 236, 237).

At no tine did the enpl oyees tested use respirators while
engaged in wel ding and whil e the sanpling was bei ng conducted (T.
35), nor was the exhaust fan at the crusher systemturned on (T.
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35, 36) until the afternoon of the sanpling day (T. 36). Had the
exhaust fan been operating, the mner (welder) involved would not
have been over-exposed (T. 35, 36, 71).

Visible dust in the area where the sanpling was conducted
was not observed by either the Inspector (T. 17) or by
Respondent' s observor, Steve Findlay (T. 191, 192).

After discussing the matter with M. Duran, the Inspector
indicated on the Citation that the occurrence of the event
agai nst which the cited standard is directed was reasonably
likely and that the injury resulting fromor contenplated by the
occurrence of such event could reasonably be expected to be
"permanently disabling” (T. 38-40, 77-80). At hearing, the
Secretary abandoned the contention that any resultant injury
woul d be permanently disabling (T. 156).

At all times during the inspection and the conducting of the
air sanples, M. Dennehy followed the proper procedure and used
the proper filters and equi prent (T. 83, 95-96, 99, 136, 140-142,
168). M. Dennehy's sanple, therefore, was accurate and showed
t hat overexposure had occurred to at |east one enpl oyee as
i ndi cated by sanple MD-1 on Exhibit P-4. The sanpling was
conducted for vanadi utm fume which I conclude was proper in this
i nstance. Thus, M. Duran, MSHA's expert wi tness, testified that
during the wel ding process, when the materials vaporized and m x
with the air and condense, fune is produced (T. 98-99). M. Duran
also credibly testified with respect to the propriety of testing
for fune, to wit:

"Q Based on M. Dennehy's testinmony and in your opinion,
was it appropriate for M. Dennehy to test for fune?

A. Yes.

Q Wiy is that?

A. The rod and the netal that's being welded in the wel ding
process, there will be material vaporized when the vapor - and as |
i ndi cated, when materials vaporize and nixes with the air and

condensed, it is a fume. The wel ding process itself does not
produce any dust.

Q Just a fune.
A. Yes.

Q Now, based on the testinony you heard and in your
opi nion, was there a fune present?

A Yes.

Q I'll refer your attention again to the TLV bookl et that
you have in front of you. There's a listing for vanadi um and
right after vanadiumit says V205. WIIl you explain what that
i ndi cates?
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A. The standard is for vanadi um V205, vanadi um pent oxi de. But
standard is in ternms of vanadi um Not vanadi um pent oxi de.

Q Wat does that nean as far as -

A It just sinply neans that in the case of welding the
standard i s vanadi um pentoxi de. But as far as the analysis and
the concentration of air, it's all based just on vanadi um Not
vanadi um pent oxi de.

Q Okay. How does one get vanadi um pent oxi de?

A. You get it from wel di ng.

Q What is it exactly?

A. Well, as | indicated, you may have, say, a netal,
vanadium and if you heat it or in the case of welding, you
vaporize sone of the material. If it mxes with air or oxidizes,

t hen you can get vanadi um pent oxi de.
Q In your opinion, was vanadi um pent oxi de present?
A Yes." (T. 99-100).

I nspect or Dennehy's testing for vanadi umfume, rather than
testing for vanadi um dust or sonme other "m xed" test, is thus
supported in the record and found to be proper (T. 34-35, 50-53,
96-99, 136-138, 140, 159, 168, 236-238). The TLVs thensel ves,
bei ng an incorporated and integral part of the safety and health
standard invol ved, call only for determ nation of either a fune
or a dust neasurenent.

Di scussi on

As one of its concerns, Respondent, citing the decision of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Revi ew Conm ssion in Secretary
v. Tammsco, Inc. and Schmarje, 7 MSHRC 2006 (1985), argues that
"the law requires that a violation of 30 C F.R [57.5001/5005 be
est abl i shed by actual sanpling and anal ysis." Respondent
enphasizes in its argunent that exposure levels are to be
determ ned by actual sampling, not by inference, and goes on to
argue (1) that a reading for vanadiumalone is insufficient to
sustain a finding of vanadi um pent oxi de exposure, and (2) that
the I aw requires and MSHA nust prove that the type of activity
performed by Respondent created the presence of vanadi um
pent oxi de. Respondent’'s contention to the contrary, the TLVs
patently contenpl ate the determ nati on of vanadi um pentoxi de be
made by testing (sanpling) either vanadium fume or vanadi um dust.
(T. 100-102, 168, 236-238). In Tammsco, supra, MSHA conducted no
sanmpling or testing. However, in the instant nmatter, the record
is clear that |Inspector Dennehy's determination that the exposure

t he
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| evel exceeded the applicable TLV was based on acutal sanpling
followi ng |l engthy procedures and not on inference. The

di fferences between that proceeding and this, as well as the
di fferences and interplay between 30 C.F.R [57.5001 and 5005
were pointed out by the Conm ssion in Tamsco, to wt:

"We agree with the judge that in order to establish a
viol ation of section 57.5-5, the Secretary nust first prove a
violation of section 57.5-1. It is clear fromthe | anguage of the
Secretary's standard that section 57.5-5 establishes an exception
to the general mandate of section 57.5-1 which requires that
ai rborne contami nants not exceed their TLV, and that the
application of section 57.5-5 is conditioned specifically on a
determ nation that mners are exposed to excessive |evels of
ai rborne contaminants in violation of section 57.5-1. These
exposure levels are to be determ ned by actual sanpling, not by
i nference. As the judge noted, however, the citation at issue
alleges a failure to conply with a provision of the "dust control
pl an", and does not allege overexposure to airborne contam nants.
We agree with the judge that the Part 57 air quality standards do
not provide for the adoption and approval of a dust control plan
whi ch can be enforced as a mandatory health standard. Cf. Carbon
County Coal Co., 7 FMSHRC 1367, 1370 (Septenber 1985) (discussing
t he approval and adoption of dust control plans required by 30
U S.C. 0863(0)). For this reason, and because no nonitoring,
testing or sanpling of enployees or the atnosphere was perforned
by MSHA during the inspection, the judge correctly dism ssed the
proceedi ngs." (Enphasis added).

The "exception"” to the proscriptions of subsection 5001
referred to in the opening line of 5001, i.e. "Except as
permtted by [057.5005" is contained in the second and third
sentences of subsection 5005. These two sentences permt mners
in certain specified situations to work "for reasonabl e periods
of time" in concentrations of airborne contam nati on exceedi ng
perm ssible levels "if they are protected by appropriate
respiratory protective equi pnent.”

In this proceeding the Secretary has established that a
m ner was exposed, in violation of 30 C.F.R [57.5001, to an
excessive |l evel of airborne contam nant. The Secretary al so
established that the m ner was not wearing protective equi pnent
and that a ventilation fan in the area invol ved was not operating
for a significant part of the tine that sanpling was conducting
(T. 35, 36). Respondent, on the other hand, nade no show ng t hat
it was entitled to relief under the Subsection 5005 exception
and its various contentions in this connection, being unsupported
inthe record in either fact or legal authority, are rejected.

Nor does the record support the certitude in Respondent's
flat assertion (Respondent's Brief at page 5) that " . . . NMSHA
m st akenly assuned that the sanples taken on or near the wel ders
at the mine on May 15th were entirely welding funes. In reality,
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vanadi um dust from surface brushing entered the filter." Thus,
Respondent's chief witness on this critical point, Steve Findl ay,
on direct exam nation, gave an "opinion" on what is a question of
fact to this effect " . . . | believe, the sanple was

contam nated . . . " (T. 186).

Subsequently on cross-exam nation, M. Findlay, with
commendabl e candor, significantly qualified even this opinion

"Q did you, on that particular day - see if | understand
this. You testified that the enpl oyees were brushing the netal ?

Yes.
Did you see them brushing the netal ?

No, | didn't.

o »>» O >

Do you know when that occurred?

A. I"msure that occurred prior to themdoing the hard
surfacing. What woul d happen is they would have to - each teeth,
like | said, the separate teeth on the grinder - as they' re working
on each one of those, the next row they go to they probably brush
it and so forth. Cean it.

Q So you say they probably did that?

A Wll, it's a standard operating procedure.

Q Could they brush the entire - all of the teeth first and
t hen wel d?

A. That's possible, but normally that's not done.
Q They lift their mask when they do the grinding?
A. They usually take off their hel nets.

Q And they don't use any personal protective equi pnent when
t hey brush?

A. No.

Q And you're not saying they did any grinding on that
particul ar day?

A. Not that |'m aware of.

Q You indicated that you were in the area when the
i nspector was, is that correct?

A. The majority of the tinme.



~292
Q Did you notice any dust in the air?

A. Well, no. But, you know, you can't see dust. Like sone
m cron particles of dust or mcron particles, of course, you
won't be able to see. Visual test of the dusting is not one way
to nonitor the presence of dust.

Q | understand that. I"'mjust asking if you saw anything in
the air that day that would indicate the presence of dust.

A. No.

Q Is it your testinmony then that this brushing put dust
particles into the air?

A. Yes. That's a good possibility.
Q What kind of dust particles?

A. Wll, there's shale dust, there's dust also fromthe
vanadiumthat's been laid on before that.

Q I'msorry. Are you saying that they brushed the vanadi um
that's al ready been |aid?

A. No. What |I'msaying is they had put a surface of vanadi um
on there prior. Like | said, they've done this before. So
possi bly there was surface netal there brushing and so forth.

Q So you're saying that the brushing then puts the dust in
the air?

A. That's a possibility.

Q That's a possibility. During the welding process, if that
flane, the welding flame, hits the dust, what effect does it have
on the dust?

A. Depending on the force of the flane, | don't know It
could make it airborne. |I'mnot sure.

Could it turn into a fune?

The dust itself?

I wouldn't think so. No. | don't know.

Q
A

Q Yes.
A

Q I'msorry. You don't know or you don't think so?
A

| don't know.
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Q You don't know. All right. I"'mnot sure |I heard exactly what
you said, but you said that the sanples were - what word did you
use? You had an opinion as to the sanpling procedure.

A. | believe what | said was the sanple m ght have been
cont am nat ed.

Q M ght have been contam nated. And what's the basis of
t hat opi ni on?

A Vell, we're sanpling for fume and there's a possibility
that particul ates could have ended in the filter

Q Wuld those particul ates have entered the filter while
they had their masks down? Their wel di ng masks.

A. | don't see how.

Q So it would have been during the tine they had taken
their - are they called nasks or shiel ds?

A. Hoods.
Hoods. During the tine they took those hoods of f?
. Right. The shades on those are so dark that it would be
quite inpossible to do any work outside of welding using that

torch with the hood on. You just couldn't see.

Q | believe you told ne that you didn't stay with these
wel ders all day as the inspector didn't stay with them

A. Right.

Q And did you see how often or were you able to observe how
often they had their hoods on or off?

A. No. The only tine | observed it, of course, was when |
went up to change ny filters.

Q What were they doing when you changed your filters?

A. M. Everett, | believe, was sitting - | was talking to him
for a while. He was changi ng sone rods. And he was tal ki ng about
taking a break. It was close to 2:00 o' clock. And | didn't
observe hi m doi ng anything el se.

Q Did you observe themwel ding during the day?

A. Yes.

Q Did you observe them doi ng any brushing during the day?
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A. Not that | can recall.

Q Now, you indicated that in your opinion - correct nme if I'm
wrong. |In your opinion the sanple m ght have been cont am nat ed.

A. Yes.

Q Contaminated with -

A. Particul ates.

Q Particulates. Now | understand you' re not a chemi st
right?

A. Right.

Q Do you know if that has any effect on the anal ysis that
i s done?

A It could. I nmean, if you have vanadi um from ot her sources
it could have an effect because what you're neasuring on the
anal ytical is the total vanadium You can't distinguish between
one that's coming froma fune and one that's not. (T. 190-195)."
(Enphasi s supplied.)

On the basis of the specul ative nature of this evidence, and
in the absence of testinony fromother w tnesses having actua
know edge with respect to dust being present, the quantities
thereof, as well as the specific effect if any, such would have
on the sanpling results, | amunable to find, as Respondent
urges, that the Inspector's vanadium fune testing procedures were
defective or that the results thereof were invalid as to sanple
nunber MD-1 (Ex. P-2). | jhave previously determ ned that the
I nspector's choice to sanple for vanadium fune - rather than V
dust - was proper and justified in the record. From eval uati on of
M. Findlay's testinmony-and the remai nder of the record-one is
constrained to conclude that Respondent did not establish by
probative evidence that dust, in any anmount, entered the sanpling
filter enployed by Inspector Dennehy. In any event, Respondent
did not establish what, if any, anount of dust entering the
sampling filter would vitiate the result of |Inspector Dennehy's
testi ng.

Al t hough Respondent makes various attacks on the validity of
the Secretary's testing procedures, the record is bereft of the
requi red factual and/or |egal foundations therefor. It appearing
that the Secretary has established by a preponderance of the
reliable and probative evidence that a mner was exposed to a
| evel of airborne contam nant in excess of the applicable TLV, a
violation of 30 C.F. R [57.5001 is found to have occurred.
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The question remai ns whether this was an S & S viol ation, that
is, whether it is of such nature as could significantly and
substantially contribute to the cause and effect of am ne safety
or health hazard.

A violation is properly designated S & S "if, based upon the
particul ar facts surrounding the violation there exists a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that the hazard contributed to will result
inan injury or illness of a reasonably serious nature." Cenent
Di vi sion, National Gypsum Co., 3 FMSHRC 822, 825 (April 1981).

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1 (1984), the Conm ssion
listed four elenents of proof for S & S violations:

In order to establish that a violation of a mandatory
safety standard is significant and substantial under
Nati onal Gypsumthe Secretary of Labor nust prove: (1)
the underlying violation of a mandatory safety
standard; (2) a discrete safety hazard - that is, a
nmeasure of danger to safety - contributed to by the
violation; (3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard
contributed to will result in an injury; and (4) a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that the injury in question wll
be a reasonably serious nature.

In the United States Steel M ning Conpany, Inc., 7 FNMSHRC
1125, 1129 (1985) the Commi ssion expounded thereon as foll ows:

We have explained further that the third el enent of the
Mat hies formula "requires that the Secretary establish
a reasonabl e likelihood that the hazard contributed to
will result in an event in which there is an injury.”
US Steel Mning Co., 6 FMSHRC 1834, 1836 (August
1984). W have enphasi zed that, in accordance with the
| anguage of section 104(d)(1), it is the contribution
of a violation to the cause and effect of a hazard that
must be significant and substantial. U S Steel M ning
Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1866, 1868 (August 1984); U.S.
Steel M ning Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1573, 1574-75
(July 1984).

| have previously found that a violation occurred. It is
al so determ ned on the basis of ny prior findings that a nmeasure
of danger to safety, or in this matter, health, was contri buted
to by the violation. The primary issue raised is whether the
Secretary established that there existed a reasonable |ikelihood
that the hazard contributed to would result in an injury
(illness).

I nspect or Dennehy indicated in the Citation that an
over exposure was reasonably likely to occur. Inspector Dennehy,
at hearing, expressed a belief this event was reasonably likely
to occur because the operator did not provide ventilation at the
site of the welding, nor did they provide respirators to the
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enpl oyees who were conducting the welding. As part of the process
of completing the citation Inspector Dennehy discussed this
finding with M. Duran, as well as the part of the citation where
he indicated that an injury could occur that m ght be permanently
di sabl i ng.

M. Duran indicated that the synptons resulting from an
overexposure to vanadi um "coul d* create serious health hazards
(T. 105, 106). H s opinion was based on the fact that bronchi al
irritation could occur, as well as possible penunonia or asthma
(T. 106). Another possible effect of vanadi um overexposure,
dependi ng on the individual, is that such an enpl oyee coul d
beconme "sensitized" neaning that after being exposed on one
occasi on he m ght experience nore severe synptons with the next
exposure at the same-or even |ower-concentration (T. 106-111).
M. Duran indicated that an incursion of 35 percent over the TLV
woul d be an exposure of a "noderate" level (T. 109-110). M.
Duran indicated that while synptons would vary from person to
person an enpl oyee exposed to vanadiumat a certain |evel "mght"
devel op synmptons (Tr. 110). He said an enpl oyee exposed to .0678
mlligranms per cubic nmeter of vanadi um "coul d* devel op a cough
sore throat and have troubl e breathing and he could al so devel op
synptons simlar to those encountered with the flu (T. 110, 111).
Such synptons "coul d* result in |ost workdays and, in M. Duran's
opinion on this point, which | credit, these would be relatively
serious illnesses (T. 111).

C ose scrutiny of M. Duran's testinony in connection with
the "likelihood" of an injury or illness occurring reveals it to
be of the sane specul ative conpl exion previously attributed to
M. Findlay's testinony respect to the possible contam nation of
the sanpling filters.

In contradiction of M. Duran's opinion, Respondent's expert
wi t ness, Dr. Paul Ferguson, a toxicologist, gave as general
opi nions that an .0678 exposure to vanadi um funme woul d not cause
an injury resulting in |l ost work days, that there was not a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that such an exposure would result in an
illness, and that there was not a reasonable |ikelihood that any
resulting illness would be of a reasonably serious nature (T.
215-217).

In support of his opinion relating to the probability or
i kelihood that such (.0678 V funme) exposure would result in an
illness Dr. Ferguson provided the follow ng rational e:

"A. Based on the scientific literature, .1 mlligrans per
cubic neter is the |owest |evel where we see synptons. They're
not debilitating synptons, but an individual will have a slight
irritation and have sonme coughi ng. That can be defined as an
illness. W don't want to allow our workers to be exposed to
| evel s - how minor do cause synptons. Above that, the synptons
progress severely. the .05 limt includes a safety factor that to
t he best of our know edge, would provide no synptons. There
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are no specific scientific literature that tested nmen and wonen
at .05. That lowest level is really a .1 in a controlled
experimental condition by Zenz and Berg is what the TLV i s based
on and they have that as a safety factor

Q So you would attribute the difference then to a margin of
safety allowed by the drafters of the TLV s.

A Yes." (T. 237, 238).

Dr. Ferguson's opinion that there was not a reasonable
l'ikelihood of an injury (illness) occuring at the |evel of
exposure detected by I nspector Dennehy is, in view of its
positive and convincing tenor and supportive rationale, accepted.
Such is deemed to rebut and overcone any presunption to the
contrary. See Consolidation Coal Conpany, 8 FMSHRC 890 (1986).
Accordingly, it is concluded that the violation is not S & S.

PENALTY ASSESSMENT

The Secretary proposes a penalty of $112.00 which in his
post-hearing brief the Secretary concedes takes into
consi deration a | ow degree of gravity. Other mandatory penalty
assessnment criteria were the subject of stipulation by the
parties at the hearing (T. 4), and based thereon it is found that
Respondent is a |large mne operator, that paynment of a penalty at
the nmonetary level urged by the Secretary will not jeopardize
Respondent's ability to continue in business, and that
Respondent, after notification of the violation, proceeded in
good faith to achieve rapid conpliance with the subject safety
and health standard. The conputerized printout submitted by the
Secretary as evidence of Respondent's history of prior violations
for the 2 year period preceding the issuance of the Ctation
i nvol ved here reflects that Respondent comritted 12 viol ati ons
during such period.

Wth respect to the remaining mandatory penalty assessnent
criterion, negligence, the Secretary's apparent theory is that
Respondent negligently failed (a) to provide the subject m ner
with respiratory protective equi pnment, and (b) turn on an exhaust
fan in the area where the wel ding was bei ng conducted. Wuld the
fan, in the terns of the standard, 30 C F.R 057.5005, have
renoved the airborne contam nants by "exhaust ventilation" or
have control |l ed enpl oyee exposure by "dilution wth
uncontam nated air"? According to the Inspector, if the fan had
been operating, the welders would not have been "exposed
what soever” (T. 36). The provision specifically requiring
protective respiratory equi pnent is applicable only where the
5005 exception to 30 C.F. R 057.5001 is clained or established
by the respondent nine operator. Such is not the case here.

VWile | amunable to fully fathomthe Secretary's theory of
negligence, it does appear, insofar as the welders were all owed
to conduct welding with the exhaust fan turned off, that
respondent was negligent in this regard. According to the
I nspector, enploynment of the exhaust fan would have alleviated
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t he overexposure. Respondent did not rebut this evidence; nor did
it claimor show any reason why the fan could not have been
turned on, or otherwi se present any justification, such as |ack
of awareness, for this nonfeasance. | infer fromthe facts that
(1) such an engineering control neasure (exhaust fan) was
avai l abl e and (2) that such was in fact operated in the afternoon
of the sanpling day, that this measure could have been utilized
prior thereto on the inspection day to prevent the overexposure
docunented by the Inspector and that Respondent was negligent in
not doi ng so.

On the basis of the foregoing considerations a penalty of
$75.00 is found appropriate and i s assessed.

CORDER

1. Ctation No. 2355268 is nodified to delete that portion
thereof alleging that the violation charged is "Significant and
Substantial" and affirned in all other respects.

2. Respondent shall pay the Secretary of Labor within 30
days fromthe date hereof the sum of $75.00 as and for a civil
penal ty.

M chael A. Lasher, Jr.
Admi ni strative Law Judge
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
~FOOTNOTE_ONE

1 In Secretary v. Consolidation Coal Conpany, 6 FMSHRC 189
(1984), the Commi ssion held that S & S findings may be made in
connection with a citation issued under Section 104(a) of the
Act. Considering this ruling in conjunction with U S. Stee
M ni ng Conpany, 6 FMSHRC 1834 (1984), where the mine operator was
allowed to contest S & S findings entered on Section 104(d) (1)
citations in a penalty case, it is concluded that S & S findi ngs
contained in a Section 104(a) Citation simlarly are properly
reviewable in this penalty proceeding. See also Al entown Cenent
Conmpany, Inc. v. Secretary of Labor, 8 FMSHRC 1513, at 1517
(1986).

~FOOTNOTE_TWOD

2 At the hearing, the presiding judge took official notice
of (1) the applicable threshold limt values (herein TLV' s) (T.
7, 8), and (2) A 1973 TLV booklet from ACGH. (T. 251)
Repr oduced copi es of both docunents have been placed in an
"Exhi bits" fol der which, together with other exhibits and the
transcript of hearing, constitute the official record in this
nmatter.

~FOOTNOTE_THREE

3 The effect of the "C' designation in front of the Vanadi um
Fune TLV is shown in [057.5001(c), supra, and | infer fromthe
fact that w thdrawal of enployees is required where the "C
designati on appears that such a concentration of the airborne
contam nant, in the opinion of ACAH poses a potentially serious
hazard (T. 140, 141, 236, 237).



